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KENNEDY, John Stewart, financier and phil-
anthropist, was boin at ‘Blantyre, near Glasgow,
Scotland, Jan. 4, 1830, son of John and Isabel
(Stewart) Kennedy. He was educated in the pub-
lic schools of Glasgow. His father’s circumstances
made it impossible to expect a college career, and
at the age of thirteen the son began his business
life as a clerk in a shipping ollice. TFour years
later he transferred his services to an iron and coal
concern in Glasgow, and in 1530 a London firm in
the iron and metal business made him an offer to
travel for it in the United States and Canada, and
he eagerly accepted the opportunity of broadening
his experience and enlarging his prospects for ad-
vancement. He came to the United States in June,
1850, and made his headquarters in New York city
for two years. He went back to become the man-
ager of the same firm’s branch office in Glasgow,
and he held that position from August, 1852, until
December, 1856, but the institutions and the op-
portunities of the new world had made a strong
impression on the ambitions of the young man, and
he determined to return to New York at the first
opportunity. That came when he was asked to as-
sociate himself with the banking firm of M. K.
Jesup & Co., which had been newly started by one
who was himself destined to attain a foremost
place as a banker and philanthropist. Mr. Ken-
nedy became a member of the firm, the name of
which was changed to Jesup, Paton & Co., and
shortly thereafter the partners organized the firm
of Jesup, Kennedy & Co., with offices in Chicago,
11, to engage in the railway supply business. He
withdrew from this eonnection July 1, 1567, and
after a year of travel and recreation in Europe es-
tablished the banking house of J. 8. Kennedy &
Co. He became one of the foremost financiers of
the country, and won an enviable reputation for
clean and safe methods and a dignified and exalted
standard of business ethics. Ouiside his own firm
Mr. Kennedy was identified with many important
business organizations. He was appointed by con-
gress one of the incorporators of the Union TPacific
railway, and attended the meeting in Chicago
when that company was formed. Wall street knew
him particularly as one closcly associated with
Jaines J. Hill in the Northwestern railway devel-
opment. He was interested in the construction of
what is now the Great Northern railway, and was a
member of the syndicate that contracted in Febru-
ary, 1851, with the Canadian government to build
the Canadian Pacifie railway, and after the charter
was granted by the Dominion parliament he con-
tinued to serve for some time as a dircetor of that
company. e refired from active participation in
his banking husiness in 1583, the business being
continued by his nephew unider the name of J. Ken-
nedy Tod & Co., but he continued to hold the di-
rectarships of various railroad interests throurheont
the conntry, among which were the Northern Pa-
cific Railway Co., the Chieago, Durlington &
Quiney system, the Cleveland & Pittshureh Rail-
road Co., the New York, Chicago & St. Louis Rail-
road Co., and the Pittshurgh, I't. Wayne & Chieago
Railway Co. In 1886 he was appointed by the
U. 8, cireuit court one of the receivers of the Cen-
tral railroad of New Jersey, and after condueting
its affairs for fifteen months the company was
placed on a solid foundation. Fe was a trustee
and finance committeeman of the New York Life
Insurance Co., and a trustee of the Central Trust
Co., the Title Guaranty and Trust Co., the United
States Trust Co., the Hudson Trust Co. of New
Jersey, and the Manhatian Bank. Widely known
as Mr. Kennedy was in the world of finance, he
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became more widely known in the field of philan-
thropy. A vein of philanthropic zeal animated and
dominated his whole life. e had an overflowing
tenderness for those in need; his sympathy was
genuine and his hospitality a fine art, and he never
lost an opportunity of showing grace and kindness
to even slight acquaintances. With him it was no
empty honor to be called trustee or oflicer of an
organization; his interest in its welfare was sin-
cere, and he wanted to take a hand in directing it.
He gave to all at least a part of his time as well as
a part of his money. His oldest and most intimate
relation to any charitable institution was to the
Preshyterian Iospital, of which he was president
continuously for the last twenty-five ycars of his
life. e rarely missed a meeting of the board of
managers or of the executive committee, of which
he was chairman, and there was no question of
hospital policy which did not receive his personal
consideration. It wasto thishospital that he made,
on the occeasion of his golden wedding anniversary,
in 1908, his largest single gift; namely, $1,000,000,
Ten years previously he made almost as large a
gift of far-reaching consequences to the charities
of New York by erecting the United Charities
building on Fourth avenue, which furnishes head-
quarters for the Charity Organization Society, the
Association for Improving the Condition of the
Poor, the Children’s Aid Society, the New York
City Mission and Tract Socity, and many other
institutions of equal importance. Mr, Kennedy in
hig letter of gift to the beneficiary societies said:
“‘Tt has long seemed to me important that some
well-known charitable center should be established
in the city of New York in which its various be-
nevolent institutions could have their headquarters,
and to which all applicants for aid might apply,
with assurance that their necds would be promptly
and carefully considered.’”’ The building has more
than served its purpose, for it has brought together
the important charities of New York, not only in
locality but in spirit. It has made co-operation be-
tween them natural and casy, and it has served as
an example to other cities. Nothing impressed Dr.
Emil Munsterberg, the director of charities of Ber-
lin, Germany, more during his visit to America
than the beneficial effect of this building on social
work in New York, and he returned to his native
city with the firm purpose of inducing the citizens
of Berlin to imitate in this particular the example
which New York had sct through the generosity of
Mr. Kennedy. To the School of Philanthropy of
the Charity Organization Society Mr. Kennedy
gave $250.000 in 1904, and in 1907 he gave $300,-
009 to Columbia University. He was president of
the hoard of trustees of Robert College, Constanti-
nople, Turkey, and of the American Rible TTouse
in the same city, e was a trustee of Columbia
University, vice-president of the Metropolitan Mu-
seum of Art, the New York Publie Library (hav-
ing been president of the Lenox Tibrary before its
consolidation), and the Society for the Ruptured
and Crippled. He was one of the founders of the
Provident TLoan Society of New York, the well-
known and sucecessful philanthropic pawnbroking
establishment, serving as its trustee after organiza-
tion; was a viee-president of the New York Cham-
ber of Commerce. and president of the St. An-
drew’s Society. Ifis will, under which he lefl an

estate of over $67,000,000, nearly one-half of it for
the welfare of the public, indicates the breadth as
well ns the extent of his philanthropic intentions.
With him liberal giving was not mercly a pleasure
or a pastime, but a solemn duty, and the thought
which underlay his large bequests as well as the




OF' AMERICAN BIOGRAPHY. 151

liberal gifts he made in so many directions before
his death, was well expressed by the clause in his
will with which he precedes his public legacies as
follows: “*Having been greatly prospered in the
business which 1 earried on for more than thirty
years in this, my adopled country, and beiug de-
sirous of leaving some expression of my sympathy
with its religious, charitable, benevolent and eduea-
tional institutions, I give and bequeath,”* ete. Mr.
Kennedy was a prominent member and trustee of
the Fifth Avenue Presbyterian Church. He found
his recreation in various out-door sports. The
opening of the trout season always found him at
the South Side Sportsman’s Club of Long Island,
and he never failed to open the salmon seuson, either
at the Restigouche Salmon Club, of which he was
president, or at the Caseapedia Club in Canada,
He was said to have held the record for the largest
number of salmon taken with the fly within a two-
week period. Mr. Kennedy was married Oct. 14,
1858, to Emma, daughter of Cornelius Baker of
Elizabeth, N, J. He died in New York city, Oct.
30, 1009,

SEGUIN, Edouard, psychologist, neurologist,
and philanthropist, was born at Clamecy, depart-
ment of Niévre, France, Jan. 20, 1812, son of Dr.
0. Seguin. IIe was descended from a long line
of eminent physicians in Burgundy who ranked at
the head of their profession, and was himself des-
tined to become the most gifted of his line. He
was educated at the college of Auxerre, and at
that of St. Louis in Paris. He then commenced
the study of medicine, in which he displayed such
analytical power and such patience of research
that he beeame a great favorite of Itard and of
Esquirol, then the most distinguished psychologists
and alienists in Europe, and was associated with
them in their investigations. TIe had imbibed
from TItard a great fondness for psychological
studies, and while reviewing Itard’s apparently
fruitless experiments and efforts for the instruc-
tion of idiots, his genius led him to the great dis-
coveries which Itard had failed to make—that
idioey was not the result of deficiency or malform-
ation of the brain or nervous system, but simply
an arrest of mental development, occurring either
before, at, or after birth, induced in a variety of
ways and by different canses; that this arrested
development” could be overcome by appropriate
t‘rcat:_nnni and the idiot restored to society and
life, if not to the highest intelligence. This res:
toration, he believed, coulid be accomplished by a
vareful physiological training of all the senses.
Aecordingly Dr. Seguin deeided to step aside
from the brilliant earcer which had opened before
him and devote his life to the attempt to reseue
fram degradation and misery the lowest, most
{{.riug'n and abijeet of God's ereatures.  The great
\_-“".ll!rt-l was so delighted with the views of Dr.
Stiin that he obtained for him the opportunity
o make experiments to prove his theories upon
the idiot children of the celebrated Hospice de
|:It-nl-lr<r. Accordingly, in 1530, there appeared in
“{llns a modest  pamphlet entitled “f Resumd of
P ‘At We have Done During Fourteen Months

""“"":‘*i}llirul and Seguin.’’ Dr. Seguin had
Now definitely determined on his Jife work, Afrer
’“’f Years of experiment, study and labor at his
']’.:‘" expense he asked the Academy of Seiences of

Janee to appoint a commission {o report upon
n:;'[ l'ﬂplhml_s and work.,  That commission gave not
dl-r"; its highoest l'{}.mm(‘miniinn to his labors, hut
Sk ared that previously idiots could not be edn-

"'l_ by any means known or praeticed, and that

B Seguin b solved the probleat, iz methods

were made known, attention was called to his
school, which was visited by teachers and philan-
thropists of all nations, and schools for the feeble-
minded were soon established in England and the
conutries of the Continent. As a writer, con-
tributing to the best literature of France both in
poetry and prose, he aftracted great attention.
He was a brilliant counversationalist, and one of
that coterie of young philosophers including Ledru
Rollin, Piere Leroux, Louis Blane, Michel Cheva-
lier, the elder Flourens, Jean Reynaud, and Vietor
Hugo. Of this band of brothers, all of whom in
after years attained distinction, Edouard Seguin
was the youngest, but not, in spite of his modesty,
the least brilliant member. In 1350, finding him-
self in disfavor with the political party in power,
Dr, Seguin emigrated to the United States. He
aided in the more complete organization of schools
for idiots throughout the country, all of which
owed their existence, wholly or in part, either
to his school at the Hospice des Incurables,
or to his treatise, or both. In 1851 he entered
upon the general practice of his profession in
Cleveland, O., but his heart was too deeply inter-
ested for his helpless protegés and in 1554 he
went to Syracuse, N. Y., to teach and train
idiotic children in the New York state institu-
tion. During the following three years he estab:
lished many new institutions throughout New
England, Ohio, Pennsylvania, and the South. In
1857 he revisited France; returned in 1560 to
practice medicine at Mt. Vernon, N. Y.; took a
special course at the University of the City of
New York, where he was graduated in 1561, and
removed to New York city in 1863, His thorough
knowledge and rare skill, coupled with his pleas-
ant and engaging address, would have won him a
large practice in the metropolis, but he preferred
to devote his time to the children of the idiot
asylum, Randall’s Island, and to train teachers
for them. Meanwhile he studied the wider apph-
cation of his ‘‘Physiological Method’’ to the
eduacation of children. With the aid of his wife
he established a physiological school in New York
city for feeble-minded children, the outecome of
which was the more pretentious and celebrated
Seguin Physiologieal School at Orange, N. J. This
school, for the training of ehildren of arrested
mentai development and for backward children,
is still being condueted by Mrs. Elsie Mead
Seguin and has attracted the favorable attention
of the American medieal world. The school num-
bers among its cousulting physicians many of the
best known neurologists, orthopedists, opthalmolo-
gists, and aurists in the profession. While the
curriculum ineludes correction of speech defects,
kKindergarten, primary, intermediate, manual and
inilustrinl training, art, piano and voice, domestic
seience, and wedical and educational gymnasties,
ver sense amil motor training, constituting br,
Seguin’s physiologival method, forms the basis of
instruction,  Dr. Seguin was many dmes a dele-
gate from the American Medieal Association to
the International AMedieal Congress, and was an
officer of the latter. Among his more important
writings were ** Resumé de se que nous avous fait
Pemlant Quatorze Mais’® (with Esquirel); **Con-
seils it M. O.—sur de 1'Education de son Enfant
Iitiot 77 (1829); ' Thivie et Pratique de 'Hduea-
tion des Idiots,”” part first (1842), part seeond
(1843);  “lygitne et Edueation des Iiiots !
(1) s hmagds Gradutes o 17 Usage des Folants
Arrieres ot Liliots’? (1846); ““Traitment Moral,
Hygicne, et Fducation des Tdiots, ct des autres
Fnfants  Arritrdés’’  (1846); ‘“J. R, Pereire,




